
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr
Chief Officer (Governance)
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu)

1

Swyddog Cyswllt:
Ceri Shotton / 01352 702305
ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Cyng Neville Phillips (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell, Bob Connah, Jean Davies, 
Rob Davies, David Evans, David Healey, Ted Palmer, Mike Peers, 
Michelle Perfect, Vicky Perfect, Ian Smith ac Arnold Woolley

Dydd Iau, 20 Ionawr 2022

Annwyl Gynghorydd,

RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD ANGHYSBELL
PWYLLGOR Y CYFANSODDIAD A GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD

DYDD MERCHER, 26AIN IONAWR, 2022 2.00 PM

Yn gywir

Gareth Owens
Prif Swyddog (Llwodraethu)

Sylwch: Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod dros y we a bydd ‘presenoldeb’ wedi’i gyfyngu i 
Aelodau’r Pwyllgor a’r Aelodau hynny o’r Cyngor sydd wedi gofyn i Bennaeth y 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd am wahoddiad.  Y Cadeirydd fydd yn penderfynu a yw’r 
rhain yn cael siarad ai peidio.

Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffrydio’n fyw ar wefan y Cyngor.  Bydd recordiad o’r 
cyfarfod ar gael yn fuan ar ôl y cyfarfod ar https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home

Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau, cysylltwch ag aelod o’r Tîm Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd ar 01352 702345.

Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus

https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home


2

R H A G L E N

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU 
Pwrpas: I dderbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD (GAN GYNNWYS DATGANIADAU CHWIPIO) 
Pwrpas: I dderbyn unrhyw ddatganiad o gysylltiad a chynghori’r Aelodau 

yn unol a hynny.

3 COFNODION (Tudalennau 5 - 10)
Pwrpas: I gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfod ar 

17 Tachwedd 2021.

4 CYNLLUN DEISEBAU DRAFFT (Tudalennau 11 - 18)
Pwrpas: Galluogi’r pwyllgor i ystyried a chymeradwyo y Cynllun Deisebau 

drafft.

5 CYNLLUN GWEITHREDU AMRYWIAETH MEWN DEMOCRATIAETH 
(Tudalennau 19 - 30)
Pwrpas: Derbyn Cynllun Gweithredu Amrywiaeth mewn Democratiaeth.

Sylwch, efallai y bydd egwyl o 10 munud os yw’r cyfarfod yn para’n hirach na 
dwy awr.



3

Nodyn Gweithdrefnol ar redeg cyfarfodydd

Bydd y Cadeirydd yn agor y cyfarfodydd ac yn cyflwyno eu hunain.

Bydd nifer o Gynghorwyr yn mynychu cyfarfodydd. Bydd swyddogion hefyd yn 
mynychu cyfarfodydd i gyflwyno adroddiadau, gyda swyddogion Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd yn trefnu a chynnal y cyfarfodydd.  

Gofynnir i bawb sy’n mynychu i sicrhau bod eu ffonau symudol wedi diffodd a bod 
unrhyw sain gefndirol yn cael ei gadw mor dawel â phosib.  

Dylai’r holl feicroffonau gael eu rhoi “ar miwt” yn ystod y cyfarfod a dim ond pan 
fyddwch yn cael eich gwahodd i siarad gan y Cadeirydd y dylid eu rhoi ymlaen. Pan 
fydd gwahoddedigion wedi gorffen siarad dylen nhw roi eu hunain yn ôl “ar miwt”.

Er mwyn mynegi eu bod nhw eisiau siarad bydd Cynghorwyr yn defnyddio’r 
cyfleuster ‘chat’ neu yn defnyddio’r swyddogaeth ‘raise hand’ sy’n dangos eicon codi 
llaw electronig. Mae’r swyddogaeth ‘chat’ hefyd yn gallu cael ei ddefnyddio i ofyn 
cwestiynau, i wneud sylwadau perthnasol ac yn gyfle i’r swyddog gynghori neu 
ddiweddaru’r cynghorwyr.

Bydd y Cadeirydd yn galw ar y siaradwyr, gan gyfeirio at aelod etholedig fel 
‘Cynghorydd’ a swyddogion yn ôl eu teitl swydd h.y. Prif Weithredwr neu enw.  O 
bryd i’w gilydd mae’r swyddog sy’n cynghori’r Cadeirydd yn egluro pwyntiau 
gweithdrefnol neu’n awgrymu geiriad arall ar gyfer cynigion er mwyn cynorthwyo’r 
Pwyllgor. 

Os, a phan y cynhelir pleidlais, mi fydd y Cadeirydd yn egluro mai dim ond y rheiny 
sy’n gwrthwynebu’r cynnig/cynigion, neu sy’n dymuno ymatal a fydd angen mynegi 
hynny drwy ddefnyddio’r swyddogaeth ‘chat’.  Bydd y swyddog sy’n cynghori’r 
Cadeirydd yn mynegi os bydd y cynigion yn cael eu derbyn. 

Os oes angen pleidlais fwy ffurfiol, bydd hynny yn ôl galwad enwau – lle gofynnir i 
bob Cynghorydd yn ei dro (yn nhrefn yr wyddor) sut mae ef / hi yn dymuno 
pleidleisio.

Yng nghyfarfodydd Pwyllgorau Cynllunio a Chyngor Sir mae amseroedd siaradwyr 
yn gyfyngedig.  Bydd cloch yn cael ei chanu i roi gwybod i’r siaradwyr bod ganddyn 
nhw funud ar ôl. 

Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffrydio’n fyw ar wefan y Cyngor.  Bydd recordiad o’r 
cyfarfod ar gael yn fuan ar ôl y cyfarfod ar 
https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home 

https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



CONSTITUTION AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE
17 NOVEMBER 2021

Minutes of the remote meeting of the Constitution and Democratic Services 
Committee of Flintshire County Council held on Wednesday, 17 November 2021

PRESENT: Councillor Neville Phillips (Chairman)
Councillors: Bob Connah, Jean Davies, Rob Davies, David Evans, David Healey, 
Ted Palmer, Mike Peers, Michelle Perfect, Vicky Perfect, Ian Smith, and Arnold 
Woolley

SUBSTITUTION: Councillor Martin White for Chris Bithell

APOLOGIES:  Councillor Bernie Attridge
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Chief Officer (Governance), Head of Democratic Services, Team 
Leader- Democratic Services  and Democratic Services Officers.

28. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

The Chief Officer (Governance) advised that a personal interest would be recorded 
on behalf of Members in relation to item 4 – Independent Remuneration Panel for 
Wales (IRPW) 

29. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2021 and 30 September were 
submitted.

Accuracy:  30 September 2021: first paragraph, meeting of the Committee held on 24 
March, should read 30 September 2021.

30 September 2021: In response to the comments made by Councillor Mike Peers, 
the Head of Democratic Services agreed to inform the Planning Strategy Group of 
the suggestions as set out in minute no. 24, resolution (f).

The minutes were moved by Councillor Michelle Perfect and seconded by Councillor 
Jean Davies.

RESOLVED:

That subject to the above correction the minutes be approved as a correct record and 
signed by the Chairman. 

Tudalen 5

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 3



30. INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL FOR WALES (IRPW) 

The Head of Democratic Services introduced a report on the Independent 
Remuneration Panel for Wales (IRPW) draft Annual Report for 2022.  He provided 
background information and said the IRPW had sent the draft Annual Report to 
County Councils on 29 September, requesting comments to be made by 26 
November 2021.  The IRPW was required to take into account any representations it 
received on the draft before issuing the final version of the report in February 2022. 

In presenting the draft report, the Head of Democratic Services  advised that the 
IRPW proposed an increase in the basic salary in 2021/22 for elected members of 
principal Councils which shall be £16,800 with effect from 9 May 2022.  Increases 
were also proposed for Cabinet Members, Council Leaders and their deputies.  The 
Head of Democratic Services advised that the IRPW draft Annual Report had been 
considered by Group Leaders at a meeting held on 28 October, and their collective 
view was detailed in paragraph 1.18 of the report.  Councillor Neville Phillips, Chair of 
the Democratic Services & Constitution Committee, and the Head of Democratic 
Services had shared preliminary observations and feedback from Group Leaders 
with representatives of  the IRPW at a consultation meeting held on 2 November.  
The Head of Democratic Services sought the view of the Committee on the proposals 
made by the IRPW in the draft report for 2022 and onwards.

Councillor David Healey expressed a number of concerns and proposed that the 
Head of Democratic Services, on behalf of the Constitution and Democratic Services 
Committee, writes to the IRPW to endorse the collective view of the Group Leaders 
as set out in paragraph 1.18 of the report.  This was seconded by Councillor Mike 
Peers.  When put to the vote this was agreed by the Committee.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the Committee notes the Determinations made by the Independent 
Remuneration Panel for Wales in the draft Annual Report for 2022/23; and 

(b) That the Head of Democratic Services writes to the IRPW on behalf of the 
Committee to endorse the collective view of the Group Leaders as follows:

 It is disappointing that the IRPW have allowed the situation to develop
that such a large increase in Members’ salaries was now necessary; and 

 We believe that the increase should not be in one tranche, but
incrementally over the life of the next Council also ensuring that those
increments take into account the levels of inflation prevailing at the time

Tudalen 6



31. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

The Head of Democratic Services  introduced a report on the Overview & Scrutiny 
Annual Report for 2020/21.  He provided background information and explained the 
changes that had been made to the format of the draft Overview & Scrutiny Annual 
Report which was appended to the report for consideration and approval by the 
Committee. 

Councillor Mike Peers referred to page 120 of the report and, on a point of accuracy, 
advised that Councillor Bob Connah had been a member of the Education, Youth 
and Culture Overview & Scrutiny Committee, from December 2020.

The Chief Officer (Governance) suggested that a reference to the valuable role 
undertaken by Group Leaders in terms of providing informal scrutiny of proposals be 
included in the draft Report.  The Head of Democratic Services suggested that the 
acknowledgement be added to the foreword to the Report which was written by the 
Leader of the Council.   

The recommendations in the report were moved by Councillor Ted Palmer and  
seconded by Councillor Arnold Woolley. 

RESOLVED:

(a) That the Committee’s comments on the draft Overview and Scrutiny Annual 
Report for 2020/21 be noted; and  

(b) That the draft Overview & Scrutiny Annual Report for 2020/21 be approved for 
submission to Council.

32. MULTI-LOCATION MEETINGS AND FUTURE MEETINGS MODEL – PROGRESS 
REPORT

The Head of Democratic Services introduced the report and provided background 
information and context.  He advised that paragraphs 1.07 to 1.12 of the report set 
out a suggested interim multi-location meetings policy to be considered for adoption 
until such time as the new Council to be elected in May 2022 determined its own 
policy. He envisaged that this may not reasonably be until the autumn of 2022.

In response to the comments made by Councillor Mike Peers, Officers provided  
clarification around the reference to political balance as stated in paragraph 1.08 of 
the report.  Officers commented on the awareness of public perception around 
political grouping, the location-neutral stance which had been adopted by other local 
authorities, and the Council’s commitment to broaden diversity and democracy.

Tudalen 7



In response to the further comments made by Councillor Ted Palmer regarding 
political balance in section 1.08 of the report, the Chief Officer explained that fair and 
equal access would be given to all Members who wished to be physically present at 
meetings of the Council held in the Council Chamber.

Councillor Arnold Woolley asked if the option of electronic voting could be provided at 
Council’s Zoom meetings to ensure clarity.  The Chief Officer spoke in support of the 
use of on-line voting at remote meetings.  The Team Manager – Democratic Services 
explained that testing of the on-line voting system on Zoom had indicated that further 
work was required to adapt for use at Council meetings and agreed to take this 
forward. 

The recommendation in the report was moved by Councillor  Rob Davies and 
seconded by Councillor Mike Peers.

RESOLVED:

That the interim Multi-meetings policy, as detailed in paragraphs 1.07 - 1.12
of the report be adopted until such time as the new Council determined its
own Multi-location meetings policy.

33. DECLARATION AND DISPOSAL OF LAND SURPLUS TO REQUIREMENTS 

The Chief Officer (Governance) introduced a report to agree minor changes to the 
Constitution around how land would be declared surplus to requirements.  He 
provided background information and explained that the process for declaring and 
disposing of land surplus to the Council’s requirements was not currently 
documented and it was proposed that the process be included within the Constitution 
to improve transparency and clarity.   

Councillor Mike Peers raised a number of questions around delegated authority, 
membership of the Capital Asset Programme Board, land and property surplus to 
requirements, and the reference to a delegated report in section 1.03 of the report.   
Councillor Peers spoke on the need to ensure that ‘best value’ was obtained for the 
sale of surplus land/property and proposed that reference to this be included in the 
Constitution.  Councillor Arnold Woolley seconded the proposal.  

The Chief Officer referred to section 1.04 in the report and advised that there was a 
separate documented process to authorise the sale of a particular piece of land 
which was based on the value of the land and he provided an overview of the 
disposal process.  He confirmed that Members were already involved in the sale 
process.  In response to a question from Councillor Peers the Chief Officer confirmed 
that an independent valuation was obtained on the proposed sale of land.  
In response to the comments made by Councillor Peers concerning ‘best value’, the 
Chief Officer advised that this was a statutory obligation on the Council which could 
not dispose of land less than fair market value except in certain circumstances.  The 

Tudalen 8



Chief Officer agreed to include reference to the need to obtain  ‘best consideration’ to 
the existing delegation to Officers around the disposal of land.  

In response to a question from Councillor Ian Smith, the Chief Officer explained that 
the local Member(s) must be consulted on the sale of any land within their Ward.

Councillor David Healey asked what course of action would be taken if the  
Governing Body of a School disagreed with the potential sale of land on a school 
estate.  The Chief Officer explained that in such circumstances negotiation would 
take place with all parties involved.  The Chief Officer advised that if a School was to 
disagree with the potential sale of a particular piece of land the decision on whether 
the land was declared as  ‘surplus’ should be subject to a delegated report and he 
outlined the decision making process for delegated reports.    

The following recommendations were moved by Councillor David Healey and 
seconded by Councillor Ted Palmer 

RESOLVED:

(a) That the proposed process for declaring and disposing of land that is
surplus to requirements be included within the Constitution; 

(b) That reference to the need to obtain ‘best consideration’ be included in the 
existing delegation to Officers around the disposal of land; and

(c) That if a School should disagree with the potential sale of a particular piece of 
land the decision on whether the land was declared as  ‘surplus’ should be 
subject to a delegated report

34. MEMBERS OF THE PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the press or public in attendance.

(The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 3.20 pm)  

…………………………
Chairman

Tudalen 9



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



CONSTITUTION & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

Date of Meeting Wednesday, 26 January 2022

Report Subject Draft Petitions Scheme

Report Author Chief Officer (Governance)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Members may recall from previous reports that Section 42 of the Local 
Government & Elections (Wales) Act 2021, which comes into force with effect from 
5th May 2022 places a duty on principal councils to make and publish a petitions 
scheme. Council has previously supported this, in principle, when consulted on the 
contents of the Local Government & Elections Bill.

Members will be aware that we have a ‘Petitions’ item on the agenda for each 
ordinary meeting of Council. That is for Members to bring to the Council’s attention 
petitions which have been raised within their ward. This is recognised as being an 
important part of the relationship between a Member and the people who live and/ 
or work in their ward. Because of that, Members should be assured that no 
changes are proposed to that process.

The officers have drafted a petitions scheme, based on the criteria of suitability for 
questions at Council. This has been in place for some years and following review 
is still considered to be suitable for our purpose. The Petitions scheme is to enable 
members of the public to organise and submit petitions directly to the County 
Council. The submission of electronic petitions can be managed using the 
Modern.gov software which supports the committee system.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the Committee considers and comments on the draft Petitions 
scheme.

2 That subject to the Committee’s approval for the Petitions scheme, that it 
be submitted to Council for formal adoption.

Tudalen 11

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE  NEED FOR A PETITIONS SCHEME

1.01 Section 42 of the Local Government & Elections (Wales) Act 2021, which 
comes into force with effect from 5th May 2022 places a duty on principal 
councils to make and publish a petitions scheme. 

1.02 This is in addition, rather than as a replacement of the current facility for 
Members to submit petitions at Council meetings. Those arrangements will 
continue, and still be subject to an annual report. As in previous years, 
such reports would be made to the last scheduled council meeting of a 
municipal year.

1.03 The officers have prepared a draft Petitions scheme, which is attached as 
appendix 1. The parameters for acceptability are based on those which we 
have had for some years for public questions to Council.

1.04 The Committee is invited to consider and comment on the draft Petitions 
scheme. Subject to the Committee’s approval of the scheme, it will be 
submitted to Council for formal adoption.

1.05 Once adopted by Council, the Petitions scheme will be published on the 
Council’s website. 

1.06 The submission of electronic petitions can be managed using the 
Modern.gov software which supports the committee system.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 It is anticipated that the introduction of this statutory scheme will have few 
resource implications. 

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 This report is being published for consultation purposes.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 The adoption of a Petitions scheme is a statutory requirement.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 App 1 - Draft Petitions Scheme

Tudalen 12



6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None

Contact Officer: Gareth Owens, Chief Officer (Governance) 
Telephone: 01352 702344
E-mail: Gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 None

Tudalen 13

mailto:Gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Draft Petitions Scheme

Section 42 of the Local Government & Elections (Wales) Act 2021 places on principal 
councils, such as Flintshire a duty to make and publish a scheme setting out how we 
intend to handle and respond to petitions (including electronic petitions). 

The Council has had a simple mechanism in place for many years, whereby individual 
Members of Council are able to hand in petitions at Council meetings. Such petitions 
have typically, but not always, related to specific ward issues. This petitions scheme 
builds on that mechanism and our approach to public questions to Council. 

The Act requires that the petition scheme must, in particular, set out—
(a) how a petition may be submitted to the Council;
(b) how and by when the Council will acknowledge receipt of a petition;
(c) the steps the Council may take in response to a petition received by it;
(d) the circumstances (if any) in which the Council may take no further action in 
response to a petition;
(e) how and by when the Council will make available its response to a petition to 
the person who submitted the petition and to the public.

We are required to review our petition scheme from time to time and, if considered 
appropriate, revise it. This review could be incorporated into the Petitions Annual Report 
which we already have. If we revise or replace a petition scheme, we must publish the 
revised or new version. This can be on our website.

Petitions will still be accepted by submission through local Members at Council 
meetings. Otherwise, they will be submitted through our website, using the Modern.gov 
system which we already use to publish our agendas and reports. Link here.

The rules of the petition scheme are as follows:

No. Requirement Justification
1 Petitions will not be accepted from other on-line 

petitions systems.
This is to ensure that 
petitions have not been 
copied or otherwise 
adulterated

2 Petitions may collect signatures for a maximum 
period of 21 days.

This is to ensure that 
petitions are current, rather 
than historic.

3. To be regarded as valid, a signatory must 
provide their name, address (living or working 
within Council area) postcode and their email 
address.

This is to ensure that 
signatories are genuine, 
within an interest in 
Flintshire.

Tudalen 15



4 Petitions are not admissible if they are the same, 
or substantially similar to a petition which closed 
less than six months previously.

This is replicates the ‘six 
months’ rule for Public 
Questions to Council and 
protects against potential 
nuisance.

5 Requests for a petition on the Council's website 
(Modern.gov) will be considered by the 
Monitoring Officer (or by officers attending the 
monthly Democracy Business Planning Meeting) 
to ensure that they are appropriate and do not 
include any issues listed under 13, below.

The role of the Monitoring 
Officer /officer group is 
proposed as issues such as 
the validity of Notices of 
Motion are determined by 
that means.

6 A list of rejected petitions will be published on the 
Council's website with the reasons for rejection.

Openness.

7 For the first year, the minimum number of 
signatories for a petition is set at ten people. 
Fewer than that will be regarded as a letter or 
request for service, depending on subject matter. 
A petition might be referred to an Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee or directly to a Chief Officer 
for actioning within their portfolio. 

This is to ensure that 
petitions are matters of 
genuine public concern. 

8 The Chief Executive will decide how to respond 
to a petition which may include any one or more 
of the following:

1) referring it to Cabinet, Council or a 
committee (including an Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee);

2) referring it to an officer; 
3) not taking any action; and/or
4) taking any other steps it considers 

appropriate

9 The current practice of reporting on petitions 
received during the year will be continued, but 
individual decisions should be published on the 
website as they are made.

The annual petitions report 
(submitted to the last 
Council meeting of the 
municipal years) provides a 
continued record of petitions 
received. 

10. The response to a petition e.g. considered by 
Council, passed to Cabinet,  an Overview & 
Scrutiny committee, or to a Chief Officer, added 
to an Overview &  Scrutiny Agenda etc. will be 
published on the Council’s website. The outcome 
of individual petitions should be reported on the 
website as soon as possible.

It would be too resource 
intensive to email all petition 
signatories, to inform them 
of outcomes.

Tudalen 16



12 Petitions will be kept for six years/72 months Treated as a background 
paper and subject to the 
same time constraints. 
GDPR implications?

13 There should be a mechanism for the public to 
object (appeal) if they believe that the petition 
has not been dealt with properly. Relevant 
Cabinet Member /Chief Officer to review (if not 
previously involved)

Natural justice to build in an 
appeal mechanism.

Petitions will not be accepted if they relate to:

 Judicial or quasi-judicial matters;
 Matters under investigation;
 Individual planning, licence or grant 

applications or appeals;
 Named officers or Members of the 

Council;
 Confidential or exempt information as 

described in the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules or requires its disclosure;

 Party political matters;
 Defamatory material;
 Substantially the same issue as a question 

put within the past 6 months. 

Use of the same constraints 
as well established Council 
Questions procedure

The Council produces an annual report, detailing petitions handed in by councillors 
during the year and how they were dealt with. This is submitted to the last Council 
meeting of the municipal year.  Petitions submitted under this scheme will also be 
included in that annual report in future.

Tudalen 17



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



CONSTITUTION AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Wednesday, 26 January 2022

Report Subject Diversity in Democracy Action Plan

Report Author Chief Officer (Governance) 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Since 2018 the WLGA has been looking at whether the demography of elected 
representatives reflects the demography of the areas which they represent. In 
2021 it resolved to urge all Councils in Wales to commit to their own diversity in 
democracy declaration in order to try and make the elected Councillor cohort more 
reflective of the population as a whole.  In July 2021 Full Council approved its own 
diversity in democracy declaration and agreed to develop an action plan.

The draft action plan is intended to reduce or remove barriers to election amongst 
underrepresented groups.  It contains a series of work streams to:
 Raise awareness of the role and process for election;
 Train and support Councillors once elected;
 Reduce barriers to fulfilling the role once elected;
 Provide inspiration or role models to underrepresented groups.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the Diversity in Democracy action plan is approved.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 BACKGROUND 

1.01 The lack of diverse representation in local authorities has been recognised 
for a long time.  A more diverse democracy and elected representatives 
who are more reflective and understanding of their communities can lead 
to better engagement with communities and ward members.  This leads to 
greater levels of confidence and trust and better decision making informed 
by a wider range of perspectives.  

In September 2018 the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) 
agreed to take steps to advance gender equality and diversity in Councils 

Tudalen 19

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 5



before the 2022 elections in recognition of the lack of diversity in Welsh 
Councils.  A Cross Party Working Group was set up to explore broader 
underrepresentation in democracy.  

In March 2021 the WLGA Council received a report from the working 
group with proposals designed to achieve a step change in diversity 
following the 2022 elections.  

The report identified barriers to participation, broadly :-
- Time commitment and meeting times
- Political and organisational culture
- Childcare and other caring responsibilities
- Public criticism and online abuse
- Remuneration and impact on employment
- Lack of diverse role models and incumbency

The WLGA Council unanimously agreed that action was required.  A letter 
was sent to each Local Authority in Wales (which was considered by 
Flintshire County Council on the 22nd July 2021).  

1.02 At their meeting on the 22nd of July 2021, Flintshire County Council 
recognised the importance of diversity in democracy by making a 
commitment to be a ‘Diverse Council’ and undertook to develop an action 
plan to improve diversity. The Constitution and Democratic Services 
Committee (C&DSC) were tasked with developing the action plan. Two 
Member workshops were held on the 11th and 19th of January to provide all 
members with an opportunity to consider the draft plan prior to 
consideration by the C&DSC.  The workshops were supportive of the 
proposed action plan and suggested further actions to promote diversity.  
More detailed verbal feedback from the workshops will be provided at the 
meeting. 

1.03 The 11 key areas for consideration are summarised below.  Details of the 
proposed actions in relation to each area are detailed within the attached 
draft action plan (appendix 1). 

1.  Assess the effectiveness of the provisions in the Local Government       
(Wales) Measure 2011 in relation to data collection, and in relation to other 
candidate data that could be collected within the current devolution 
framework in order for political parties to support diverse candidates at 
elections.

2.  Identify ways to provide broader support to Councillors and potential 
Councillors to inform their decision to stand for elected office.

3.  Improve the safety of Councillors and their families when undertaking 
their Council duties.

4.  Increase confidence of Councillors that they are valued, expectations 
placed on them are fair and that their remuneration levels appropriately 
reflect the work undertaken.

Tudalen 20



5.  Maximise opportunities for individuals to work in ways that enable them 
to achieve a work / life balance which protects their welfare and wellbeing 
and allows them to manage any caring / dependency relationships.

6.  Greater respect and support for those standing for and securing elected 
office in Wales.

7.  Increase understanding of different tiers of government in Wales, the 
role each plays in society and how they operate.

8.  Comprehensive training and awareness programme available through a 
variety of routes available for Councillors to support them in their role as 
Councillors.

9.  Increase engagement with the public to:   
 raise awareness of the role and activities of the Council; 
 provide clarity about how the public can better inform local decision 

making;
 build greater community cohesion through a greater presence at 

community events, creating and building upon community networks.

10.  Increase awareness of the role of Councillors, the contribution they 
make to society and how to become a Councillor

11. Increase opportunities for women to play a full role in supporting and 
representing their communities.

1.04 The action plan is colour coded to show those actions that are either 
already in place/for which arrangements have been made (highlighted 
green) and further steps that could be taken (highlighted yellow). The 
action plan includes suggestions from the workshops.  These actions will 
be under taken between now and the elections in May and during the next 
term of the Council.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 The proposed action plan can be supported within existing resources.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 The action plan has been shared with all Councillors and two workshops 
held to debate the contents.  The action plan itself proposes a number of 
surveys for Councillors to establish what barriers exist and what more 
could be done to promote greater diversity.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None.

Tudalen 21



5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 – Draft Diversity in Democracy action plan

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None.

Contact Officer: Gareth Owens, Chief Officer (Governance) 
Telephone: 01352 702344
E-mail: gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 None.

Tudalen 22



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
DIVERSITY IN DEMOCRACY ACTION PLAN

a.Objective Proposed Actions Timeframe Responsible 
Officer/s

1. Assess the effectiveness of 
the provisions in the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure 
2011 in relation to data 
collection, and in relation to 
other candidate data that 
could be collected within the 
current devolution framework 
in order for political parties to 
support diverse candidates at 
elections

Encourage members to take part in the 
Welsh Government Survey for candidates 
and elected members at local government 
elections to gather important data about 
the diversity of candidates and 
Councillors. 

Democratic Services 
Manager

Consider appointing diversity 
ambassadors – all groups to champion the 
diversity expectations within the selection 
processes of their political parties 
(recognising that ‘Independents’ don’t 
have a political party structure).  

Group Leaders2. Identify ways to provide 
broader support to Councillors 
and potential Councillors to 
inform their decision to stand 
for elected office

Consider holding Pre-Election Briefings for 
potential candidates to provide details on 
election process and highlight the role of a 
Councillor (duties/ expectations/ 
commitment). Councillors to participate to 
give personal experience of being a 
Councillor to potential candidates. – would 
be useful to have a diverse range of 
Councillors involved in this

Chief 
Executive/Monitoring 
Officer/Democratic 
Services Manager

T
udalen 23



All candidates to be provided with Welsh 
Government Candidates’ and Councillors 
survey when available.  

Democratic Services 
Manager/Elections 
Team Leader
 

Advise Members to undertake health and 
safety training, lone working training to 
ensure their safety during elections and 
when they are elected.  Promote the Lone 
Working Policy and guidance.
 

Review after 
May 2022 
Elections

Democratic Services 
Manager

3. Improve the safety of 
Councillors and their families 
when undertaking their council 
duties

All Councillors to receive ‘Promoting 
Personal Resilience for Councillors 
Guidance’ which includes link to WLGA 
advice & support and information.

Remind all Members that CareFirst 
support is available to all Members 

Social media safety training to be 
delivered to members through the Member 
Induction Programme with ongoing 
refresher courses. 

Work with Corporate Health & Safety unit 
and Community Safety Team to further 
develop training modules going forward to 
include Risk Assessment training for Cllrs 
to help enable them to assess risks and 
recognise potential danger

Register of intimidatory behaviour or 
communication to be kept by Monitoring 
Officer. 

Democratic Services 
Manager

Democratic Services 
Manager

Democratic Services 
Manager

Democratic Services 
Manager

Monitoring Officer

T
udalen 24



Have the tools, confidence, skills, 
knowledge and information to carry out 
their Ward role effectively;

Be equipped with the appropriate 
technology and digital capability to 
effectively carry out their community 
leadership responsibilities;

Democratic Services 
Manager

Democratic Services 
Manager

4. Increase confidence of 
Councillors that they are 
valued, expectations placed 
on them are fair and that their 
remuneration levels 
appropriately reflect the work 
undertaken.

Be placed at the heart of citizen 
engagement and equipped with the insight 
and intelligence to translate this into 
tangible actions.

Democratic Services 
Manager

5. Maximise opportunities for 
individuals to work in ways 
that enable them to achieve a 
work / life balance which 
protects their welfare and 
wellbeing and allows them to 
manage any caring / 
dependency relationships

Hybrid meetings to be available from: 
Autumn 2022, when Council agrees its 
own policy.

All Councillors to be fully aware of Family 
absence provisions available to them. 
(This will be carried out during Induction, 
and through C&DSC on cyclical basis)

Encourage members/officers/public & 
press to attend meetings remotely.

Democratic Services 
Manager/Team 
Leader Committees

Monitoring Officer

Democratic Services 
Manager

T
udalen 25



Provide flexibility in Council business by:
Undertaking a review of meeting times 
each year with each committee at the first 
meeting of each cycle, including the option 
to stagger meeting times

Consider during development of the 
Schedule of Meetings for the Annual 
Meeting to have an August recess and 
that formal meetings should not be held 
during school holidays unless there is a 
clear business need.

Both actions for the
Democratic Services 
Manager

6. Greater respect and support 
for those standing for and 
securing elected office in 
Wales.

Promote duty on political group leaders to 
promote high standards of conduct. 
Standards Committee to monitor 
compliance in relation to standards of 
conduct and provide training.

Support the Welsh Government’s plans to 
introduce an Access to Elected Officer 
fund to assist disabled people to stand for 
elected office at the 2022 Local Elections. 

Monitoring 
Officer/Democratic 
Services Managers/
Monitoring Officer

Democratic Services 
Manager/Elections 
Team

7. Increase understanding of 
different tiers of government in 
Wales, the role each plays in 
society and how they operate.

Share Welsh Government educational 
resources to accompany the extension of 
the franchise to 16 & 17 year olds in 
Wales.  

Consider how to promote WG’s 
Guidance/Materials for 16 and 17 year 
olds in Wales to include social media. 

Democratic Services 
Manager
Elections Team

Communications 
Team

T
udalen 26



Consider, with Youth service co-operation, 
to explore other potential opportunities 
through youth councils/school 
councils/Head Teachers Forum, career 
fairs.  

Communications 
Team

8. Comprehensive training and 
awareness programme 
available through a variety of 
routes available for 
Councillors to support them in 
their role as Councillors.

Consider developing a Member 
Development Strategy and action plan to 
identify areas and development 
opportunities available for Members.

Review areas of training and development 
which can be made available online.
National e Learning modules to be 
accessible via  the NHS learning@wales 
website for 2022 elections 

Member Induction Programme in the 
process of being developed – work with 
WLGA and share good practices across 
Councils. 

Provide mentoring/shadowing 
opportunities for newly elected members. 

Undertake Personal Development 
Reviews for Senior Salary Holders and 
offer to non SRA holders. 

Promote the WLGA’s online “Councillors 
Guide” 
https://www.wlga.wales/a-guide-for-new-
Councillors-in-wales

Democratic Services 
Manager/Monitoring 
Officer

Democratic Services 
Manager

Corporate Training 
Manager

Group Leaders 

Group Leaders

Democratic Services 
Manager

T
udalen 27

https://www.wlga.wales/a-guide-for-new-councillors-in-wales
https://www.wlga.wales/a-guide-for-new-councillors-in-wales


9. Increase engagement with the 
public to:

 raise awareness of the 
role and activities of the 
Council 

 provide clarity about 
how the public can 
better inform local 
decision making

 build greater 
community cohesion 
through a greater 
presence at community 
events,

 creating and building 
upon community 
networks.

Consider a ‘Becoming a Councillor’ web 
page and promote, including to different 
communities in Flintshire e.g. Chinese 
community, Polish community, Asian 
community, LGBTQ+

Explore information on webpage can be 
made available in different formats such 
as BSL

Consider offering , depending on 
resources/capacity available,  shadowing 
opportunities to groups who are 
underrepresented in democracy and for 
the seldom heard

Share link to ‘Becoming a Councillor’ page 
with Town & Community Councils and 
encourage link on their website to be 
promoted. 

Develop Public Participation Strategy 
Scheme (for compliance with duty under 
the 2021 Act).  

Encourage people to participate in 
decision making and promoting 
awareness of how to become a Member, 
what membership entails, 
promoting/facilitating process. Develop 
materials to target the seldom heard / 
underrepresented

All actions for the 
Democratic Services 
Manager/ Elections 
Team Leader 
/Communications 
Team

T
udalen 28



10. Increase awareness of the 
role of Councillors, the 
contribution they make to 
society and how to become a 
Councillor.

Council website page ‘Becoming a 
Councillor’ to be established and 
promoted.  

Consider a Video  (available in BSL format 
as well) to be produced involving current 
Members highlighting the role of Members 
including benefits from both member and 
community perspective, insight into the 
work, training provided, remuneration 
package (basic allowance for 2022 is 
£16,800, IT provision, child care 
allowance, carers allowance, Local 
Government Pension Scheme,  
Broadband allowance etc. Suggest 
appearances from high profile Councillors. 

Use key days/weeks/months to highlight 
the work of Councillors such as 
International Women’s Day, and profile the 
work/roles/experiences of 1 female 
councillor from each group plus newly 
elected Councillors.

Team Leaders 

Democratic Services 
Manager/ 
Communications 
Team

Democratic Services 
Manager/ 
Communications 
Team

11. Increase opportunities for 
women to play a full role in 
supporting and representing 
their communities.

Welsh Government introduced family 
absence for Councillors in principal 
authorities to enable individuals to balance 
the important roles they play in society 
with their responsibilities as parents. FCC 
have made family absence provisions 
available to all Councillors. 

All actions for 
Democratic Services 
Manager

T
udalen 29



Consider celebrating and profiling FCC 
female Councillors on International 
Women’s Day 08.03.22.

Consider Creating mentoring /coaching 
opportunities for women who may be 
interested in becoming a Councillor.

Consider offering opportunities to girls and 
women to shadow women Councillors for 
a day.

Consider surveying to identify the barriers 
to becoming a Councillor.

Training for all elected members on 
inclusion , awareness of micro 
aggressions etc.

T
udalen 30


	Rhaglen
	3 Cofnodion
	4 Cynllun Deisebau Drafft
	Enc. 1 - Draft Petitions Scheme

	5 Cynllun Gweithredu Amrywiaeth mewn Democratiaeth
	Enc. 1 - Action Plan


